
WOODBURY COUNTY 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Monday, July 3, 2023 at 6:00 PM 
The Woodbury County Board of Adjustment will hold a public meeting on Monday, July 3, 2023 at 6:00 
PM in the 1st Floor Board of Supervisor’s Meeting Room, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas 
Street, Sioux City, IA.  Please use the 7th St. entrance.  Public access to the conversation of the meeting 
will also be made available during the meeting by telephone. Persons wanting to participate in the public 
meeting may attend in person or call: (712) 454-1133 and enter the Conference ID: 511 060 530# 
during the meeting to listen or comment.  It is recommended to attend in person as there is the 
possibility for technical difficulties with phone and computer systems. 

AGENDA

1 CALL TO ORDER 

2 ROLL CALL 

3 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

4 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: June 5, 2023 Minutes 

5 ITEM(S) OF BUSINESS 

» PUBLIC HEARING: VARIANCE APPLICATION TO BUILD TWO ADDITIONS ONTO LEGAL NON-
CONFORMING SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING WHICH IS LOCATED WITHIN THE 100 FT FRONT 
YARD SETBACK (AP ZONING DISTRICT) ON PARCEL #864508400005; 2979 GRUNDY AVE., 
HORNICK, IA 51026 
Don M. Doll and Carole S. Doll have filed a variance application with the request to add two additions onto their legal non-conforming single-
family dwelling which is located within the 100 FT front yard setback as required in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.  The 
proposal is to build the Phase 1 addition to expand the existing dining room which would required the addition to be about 62 FT from the 
front property line and the Phase 2 addition to add bedrooms which would required the addition to be about 60 FT from the front property 
line.  Both requests are further from the front property line than the front edge of the existing deck which is about 46 FT from the front 
property line.  The property owners have filed this variance to request relief from the front yard setback requirements of the AP Zoning 
District.  The property is designated as Parcel #864508400005 and is located in the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of T86N R45 (Willow Township), 
Section 8.  The property is located about 2.6 miles north of Hornick.  The property address is 2979 Grundy Ave., Hornick, IA 51026-8009. 

» INFORMATION / DISCUSSION: POSSIBLE CHANGES TO MEETING TIME AND LOCATION FOR 
THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AS REFERENCED IN THE RULES OF 
PROCEDURE 



» INFORMATION / DISCUSSION: PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
CONCERNING TEMPORARY HEAVY CONSTRUCTION SERVICES.   

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE 
WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE TO AMEND PORTIONS OF SECTION 3.03.4 ENTITLED: LAND USE 
SUMMARY TABLE OF ALLOWED USES IN EACH ZONING DISTRICT.  THE PROPOSAL IS TO REPEAL THE “PROHIBITED 
USES” FOR “AGGREGATE CRUSH & SCREEN (TEMPORARY),” “ASPHALT MIXING (TEMPORARY),” AND “CONCRETE 
MIXING (TEMPORARY),” IN THE GENERAL COMMERCIAL (GC) ZONING DISTRICT AND THE HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL 
(HC) ZONING DISTRICT AND REPLACE WITH “CONDITIONAL USES” FOR “AGGREGATE CRUSH & SCREEN 
(TEMPORARY),” “ASPHALT MIXING (TEMPORARY),” AND “CONCRETE MIXING (TEMPORARY),”  IN BOTH THE GC AND 
HC ZONING DISTRICTS.   

» INFORMATION / DISCUSSION: UPDATE ON ZONING COMMISSION MAY 22, 2023 
RECOMMENDATION FOR SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS AMENDMENTS PROPOSAL TO 
WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE.   

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS:  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE TO AMEND PORTIONS 
OF: THE TABLE OF CONTENTS; SECTION 3.03.4 ENTITLED: LAND USE SUMMARY TABLE OF ALLOWED USES IN EACH 
ZONING DISTRICT; PORTIONS OF: SECTION 6.02 ENTITLED DEFINITIONS; AND THE RENUMBERING OF DEFINITIONS 
AND PAGE NUMBERS.  THE PROPOSAL IS TO ADD SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS (PRIVATE USE) AS ACCESSORY USES 
IN EACH ZONING DISTRICT AND TO ADD SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS (UTILITY SCALE) AS A CONDITIONAL USE IN THE 
AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION ZONING DISTRICT AND THE GENERAL INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICT. 

6 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

7 BOARD MEMBER COMMENT OR INQUIRY 

8 STAFF UPDATE 

9 ADJOURN 



1 

Minutes - Woodbury County Board of Adjustment – June 5, 2023 

The Board of Adjustment meeting convened on the 5th of June 2023 at 6:00 PM in the first-floor board room of the Woodbury 
County Courthouse.  The meeting was also made available for public access via teleconference.   

BA Members Present : Daniel Hair, Tom Thiesen, Doyle Turner, Pam Clark, Ashley Christensen 
County Staff Present:  Dan Priestley, Dawn Norton 
Public Present: Leo Jochum, Adam Larson, John Baric 

Call to Order 
Chair Daniel Hair formally called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None 

Approval of Minutes 
The May 1, 2023 minutes were approved. Motion by Christensen to approve; Second by Thiesen.  Motion passed 5-0. 

Public Hearing: Conditional Use Permit Application: Conditional Use Permit Application: Temporary Borrow Pit on 
Parcel #884702100002 

Priestley read the staff report summary into the record.  JB Holland Construction, Inc. (Applicant) and property 
owner Donald Hennings of the Hennings Joint Trust have filed a conditional use permit application to establish a 
temporary borrow site to remove earthen materials to be used in Phase 1 and 2 of the east bound Highway 20 
project (IDOT Project #17-97-020-010).  The proposed temporary borrow area is located on Parcel 
#884702100002.  The parcel is located on the south side of Highway 20 and is currently used as farm ground.  The 
proposed cut area is 8-10 acres.  The work area is 10 acres and the total excavation for export is 100,000-15,000 
yrds3.  The parcel is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and not in the floodplain.  The 
applicants(s) have provided the necessary documentation for storm water management, soil erosion, dust control, 
haul routes, traffic entrances, hours of operation, and duration of operations.  Appropriate stakeholders including 
government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have been requested to comment.  Based 
on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal 
meets the appropriate criteria for approval.  The Woodbury County Zoning Commission voted to recommend 
approval (5-0) of this conditional use permit request at their May 22, 2023 meeting.  Adam Larson from JB Holland 
stated this is a backup area for borrow and may not be needed.  Motion by Clark to close public hearing.  Second: 
Turner.  Carried 5-0.  Motion to approve of the temporary borrow pit as proposed by Christensen; Second: Turner.  
Motion carried: 5-0. 

Review of Conditional Use Permit Application:  Operation of Data Processing Business to Place a Demand 
Response Load Resource Next to the Substation in conjunction with Local Electric utility to Support Grid 
Resiliency on Parcel #864723300010.
Priestley read the staff report summary into the record.  WIFI LLC (Applicant) and property owners Brenden Patricia 
A. Revocable Trust have filed a condition use permit application “to place a demand response load resource next to 
the substation in conjunction with local electric utility to support grid resiliency” for the proposed use to operate a 
data processing business.  The proposed site is on Parcel #864723300010.  The parcel is located in the 
Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not located in the floodplain.  The Land Use Summary Table 
(Section 3.03.4) of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance does not reference data processing or this specific 
request by the applicant.  However, this can be interpreted under Section 3.03.3 of the Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance as a comparable utility use or comparable to the industrial use of research and development laboratories 
in the sense of data analysis.  Therefore, for the purposes of this request, data processing can be interpreted as a 
conditional use under section 3.03.3 in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District,  Hence, based on the 
information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets 
the appropriate criteria for approval. The Woodbury County Zoning Commission voted to recommend approval (5-
0) of this conditional use permit request at their May 22, 2023 meeting.  John Baric provided information sheets and 
an overview of the project for the Board.  Motion to receive: Turner; Second: Christensen.  Carried: 5-0.  REC has 
provided a letter of support.  The center would even out the supply and demand of power and be located next to the 
Lakeport Substation.  Motion by Clark to close public hearing.  Second: Turner. Carried 5-0.  Motion by Clark: “to 
place a demand response load resource next to the substation in conjunction with local electric utility to support grid 
resiliency” for the proposed use to operate a data processing business.  Second: Christensen.  Motion carried: 5-0. 



2

Information/Discussion:  Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040 Presentation by SIMPCO 
Representatives from SIMPCO gave an overview of the progress and status of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan.  The 
new plan is not rigid or set in stone, incorporates the existing plan.  A draft plan is complete; however, comments 
and suggestions can still be submitted to SIMPCO’s website or Facebook site. Comment section will end June 16th, 
2023 then it will be presented to stakeholders. 

Information/Discussion:  Meeting Time and Location for the Woodbury County Zoning Commission as 
Referenced in the Rules of Procedure 
Staff has been approached to consider a change in meeting time/location of meetings.  Zoning Commission voted 
to possibly move meetings to 4:30 or 5:00.  The majority of the Board of Adjustment commissioners would not want 
a change to the meeting time.  The was a discussion of potential alternative locations.  The Board of Adjustment 
and the Board of Supervisors must approve any changes. 

Information/Discussion:  Update on Woodbury County Solar Energy Requirements Proposal for Possible Changes to 
the Zoning Ordinance 
At their May 22, 2023 meeting, the Zoning Commission held a public hearing regarding text amendments to the 
Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance to amend portions of the table of contents; section of the land use summary 
table of allowed uses in each zoning district; portions of entitled definitions and renumbering of definitions and page 
numbers.  The proposal would add solar energy systems (private use) as an accessory use in each zoning district 
and add solar energy systems (utility scale) as a conditional use in the AP and GI zoning districts.  Private use solar 
arrays would be considered accessory structures and could be permitted with the issuance of building permits.  
Uses for commercial or utility scale arrays would require a conditional use application.  A consideration to include 
wording regarding ‘net metering’ has been forwarded to the County Attorney’s office.  Hair and Turner would like 
restrictions placed on installing panels on slopes. 

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None 

Commissioner Comment or Inquiry 
None 

Staff Update 
The Board of Supervisors directed the Zoning Commission to consider amendments to the zoning ordinance for temporary 
construction services in the General Commercial (GC) and the Highway Commercial (HC) Zoning Districts.  Priestley will approach 
the Zoning Commission for the consideration of a change to the ordinance to facilitate temporary construction services (e.g. - 
aggregate crush & screen, asphalt mixing, and concrete mixing), as conditional uses in the future.   

Adjourn 
Motion by Thiesen.  Second: Clark.  Carried 5-0.  The meeting adjourned at 7:24 P.M. 



WOODBURY COUNTY COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
620 Douglas St. · Sixth Floor · Sioux City, IA 51101 · Phone: 712.279.6609 · Fax: 712.279.6530 · Web: woodburycountyiowa.gov

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator · dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk · dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

PRELIMINARY REPORT – JUNE 28, 2023 
VARIANCE REQUEST

APPLICATION DETAILS PROPERTY DETAILS TABLE OF CONTENTS
Owner/Applicant(s): Don M. Doll & Carole S. Doll 
Application Type: Variance 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Total Acres: 1.9 
Current Use: Residential     Proposed Use: Residential 
Pre-application Meeting: June 2, 2023 
Application Date: May 30, 2023 
Legal Notice Date: June 22, 2023 
Stakeholders’ (500’) Letter Date: June 15, 2023 
Board of Adjustment Public Hearing Date: July 3, 2023

Parcel(s): 864508400005 
Township: T86N R45W 
Section: 8 
Quarter: SE ¼ of the SE ¼  
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Floodplain District: Property removed from the 
Floodplain with Letter of Map Amendment #14-
07-2074A (Not in Floodplain). 
Address: 2979 Grundy Ave., Hornick, IA 51026 

□ Summary, Recommendation, Aerial & Proposed Area 
□ Review Criteria 
□ Applicant Comments 
□ Legal Notification 
□ Adjacent Owners' Notification 
□ Stakeholder Comments 
□ Supporting Documentation 
□ Application 

SUMMARY
Don M. Doll and Carole S. Doll have filed a variance application with the request to add two additions onto their legal non-conforming single-family 
dwelling which is located within the 100 FT front yard setback as required in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.  The proposal is to 
build the Phase 1 addition to expand the existing dining room which would required the addition to be about 62 FT from the front property line and the 
Phase 2 addition to add bedrooms which would required the addition to be about 60 FT from the front property line.  Both requests are further from 
the front property line than the front edge of the existing deck which is about 46 FT from the front property line.  The property owners have filed this 
variance to request relief from the front yard setback requirements of the AP Zoning District.  Based on the information provided, this request can be 
construed as a practical difficulty for the property owners in this case-by-case situation.  The ordinance has made it difficult for the owners to expand 
the footprint of their established home.  Therefore, after consideration of the variance criteria, staff recommends approval of this variance request.

PLAN AERIAL VIEW

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Based on the information provided, this request can be construed as a practical difficulty for the property owners in this case-by-case situation.  The 
ordinance has made it difficult for the owners to expand the footprint of their established home.  Therefore, after consideration of the variance criteria, 
staff recommends approval of this variance request.



APPLICATION













LEGAL NOTIFICATION
Published in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on July 22, 2023. 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION
The four (4) property owners within 500 FT; and listed within the certified abstractor’s affidavit; were 
notified by an June 15, 2023 letter of the public hearing before the Woodbury County Board of 
Adjustment on July 3, 2023. 

As of the printing of this packet, the Community and Development office has received: 
- 0 Phone Inquiries 
- 0 Written Comments 

The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the 
meeting.

Property Owner(s) Mailing Address Comments
David P. Wenberg, Cathe Feddersen, 
Julie Jasperson 1315 S. Royce St. Sioux City IA 51106

No comments. 

Richard Gallagher Trustee
1900 Grand Vista 
LN Manhattan KS 66503

No comments. 

Paul M. & Jean Hofmann Rev. Trust / 
Agcentric Farm Agency LLC

2912 Hamilton 
Blvd Ste 102 Sioux City IA 51104

No comments. 

Don M. & Carole S. Doll 2979 Grundy Ave. Hornick IA 51026 No comments.

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.
FIBERCOMM: No comments. 
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments. 
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments. 
LUMEN: No comments. 
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the following variance request for MEC electric,  we have no conflicts. – Casey Meinen, 

6/9/23.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments. 
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request, NIPCO has no facilities at or adjacent to this location. NIPCO has no 

issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 6/13/23. 
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments. 
WIATEL: No comments. 
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments. 
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments. 
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: I have reviewed the variance request and the property in question.   I have no objections or concerns with 

the proposed change since the landowner is coming no closer to the road than the existing buildings.   I 
would endorse approval of the request. – Mark Nahra, PE, 6/13/23 

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT: The WCSWCD has no comment regarding this request. – Neil Stockfleth, 6/12/23.



CRITERIA 1: (Section 2.02.8F1[A])

In terms of the variance application process, it is the duty of the Board of Adjustment to determine that the granting of the variance will not be contrary to 
the public interest or the general intent and purpose of this title in it that it:

1. ADVERSELY IMPACTS NEARBY PROPERTIES;

2. SUBSTANTIALLY INCREASES CONGESTION OF PEOPLE, BUILDINGS OR TRAFFIC;

3. ENDANGERS PUBLIC HEALTH OR SAFETY;

4. OVERBURDENS PUBLIC FACILITIES OR SERVICES OR;

5. IMPAIRS THE ENJOYMENT, USE OR VALUE OF NEARBY PROPERTY.

Applicant Response:

1. Explain below why granting the variance will not adversely impact nearby properties: 
- We have no residents within a half of a mile.  Surrounding ground is all farming ground.  Requesting variance to build within the current 

setback. Phase 1 to be completed within 2023 + with the 62’ setback.  

2. Explain below why granting the variance will not substantially increase congestion of people, buildings or traffic: 
-  We are remotely rural, with very little activity in our area. 

3. Explain below why granting the variance will not endanger public health or safety: 
- There again we are very remote. These addons will not have any toxins, or poisons, etc attach to this project.  Not building any closer to the 

road, actually further then the existing house is now.  

4. Explain below why granting the variance will not overburden public facilities or services: 
-  Electrical, fiber optics, or phone will not have any extra burden on them.  Theres 400 AMP service to the property & 200 AMP service to the 

house.   

5. Explain below why granting the variance will not impair the enjoyment, use or value of nearby property: 
-  In fact it will be an improvement on the value of this property & will enhance the overall appearance of this area.   

Staff Analysis:

Based on the information presented in this application including the site plan, it is clear that the applicant’s plans are constrained by the parameters of the 
zoning ordinance.  Staff concurs with the applicant’s responses.  This proposal does not appear to adversely impact nearby properties, increase significant 
congestion to the area, endanger public health or safety, and overburden public facilities or services.  This issue appears to be a practical difficulty as the 
regulations in the ordinance significant impact the property owner’s opportunity to add their requested Phase 1 and Phase 2 additions on to the house.

CRITERIA 2: (Section 2.02.8F1[B])

The ordinance also states that granting the variance is necessary to assure that the owner does not suffer an economic hardship. (Note: increased financial 
return or reduced costs to the applicant are not adequate cause for a finding for a hardship.)  A finding of economic hardship must be based on each of the 
following:

6. THE PROPERTY CANNOT YIELD A REASONABLE RETURN IF USED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THIS TITLE;

7. THE PROPERTY HAS UNIQUE PHYSICAL CONSTRAINTS THAT RESULT IN ITS INABILITY TO BE USED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF THIS TITLE; AND

8. THE HARDSHIP IS NOT A RESULT OF ACTIONS BY THE OWNER.

Applicant Response:

6. Explain below why the property cannot yield a reasonable return without the granting of the variance: 
-  Is needed to add on to the existing structure.  This house is a sound & well built house & is well capable of supporting these additions to 

enhance the livability & value. 

7. Explain below why the property has unique physical constraints that result in its inability to be used without the granting of the 
variance: 
-  If we followed today’s setbacks these additions wouldn’t be attached to the house.  I am restrained by todays ordinances, and am not 

getting closer to the road & actually further from the road then the house is now. 

8. Explain below why the property has unique physical constraints that result in its inability to be used without the granting of the 
variance:
-  The set backs were different from when the house was built.  It’s not of my doing that this house falls within the 100’ set back.  At the time 

we purchased this house this set back was not an issue.   

Staff Analysis:

As noted in Criteria #1, this situation can be construed as a practical difficulty for the property owners.  It is apparent that the owners have plans to 
construct additions to their home which will not be built closer to the road than the front edge of the front deck.  It is not the fault of the property owners that 
their dwelling can not be added on to as a result of the current zoning ordinance requirements.  



CRITERIA 3: (Section 2.02.8F2-5)

The ordinance also states that no variance shall be granted:

9. WHICH WOULD PERMIT THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A USE WITHIN A GIVEN DISTRICT WHICH IS PROHIBITED THEREIN;

10. WHICH IS SO COMMONLY RECURRING THAT IT IS A DE FACTO AMENDMENT OF THIS ORDINANCE; AND

11. THAT IS MORE THAN THE MINIMUM RELIEF NEEDED.

12. TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 5.03 RELATIVE TO FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS UNLESS THE BOARD OF 
ADJUSTMENT CONSIDERS THE FACTORS LISTED IN SUBSECTION 5.03-9.C (4). 

Staff Analysis:

This is a case-by-case situation and it is reasonable for the property owners to present this as a practical difficulty.  This request has no impact on land use 
and is acceptable relief from the practical difficulty that has been presented. 



ZONING MAP



PARCEL REPORT





ELEVATION MAP















ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND PORTIONS OF SECTION 3.03.4 ENTITLED: LAND USE SUMMARY TABLE OF ALLOWED 
USES IN EACH ZONING DISTRICT.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY 
COUNTY, IOWA THAT THE BELOW ZONING ORDINANCE LANGUAGE AMENDMENTS BE MADE: 

Amendment #1 –  

On page 37: To modify the following uses within multiple zoning districts in the zoning ordinance Section 
3.03.4 Land Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses in each Zoning District under the “Temporary heavy 
construction services” category as follows: 

To repeal and replace the following uses: Aggregate crush & screen (temporary) “Prohibited use” 
represented as “--” in the “GC” (General Commercial Zoning District) column and in the “HC” (Highway 
Commercial Zoning District) column with a “Conditional use” represented with a “C” to be placed in both 
the “GC” (General Commercial Zoning District) and “HC” (Highway Commercial Zoning District) columns.   

Amendment #2 –  

On page 37: To modify the following uses within multiple zoning districts in the zoning ordinance Section 
3.03.4 Land Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses in each Zoning District under the “Temporary heavy 
construction services” category as follows: 

To repeal and replace the following uses: Asphalt mixing (temporary) “Prohibited use” represented as “--” 
in the “GC” (General Commercial Zoning District) column and in the “HC” (Highway Commercial Zoning 
District) column with a “Conditional use” represented with a “C” to be placed in both the “GC” (General 
Commercial Zoning District) and “HC” (Highway Commercial Zoning District) columns.   

Amendment #3 –  

On page 37: To modify the following uses within multiple zoning districts in the zoning ordinance Section 
3.03.4 Land Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses in each Zoning District under the “Temporary heavy 
construction services” category as follows: 

To repeal and replace the following uses: Concrete mixing (temporary) “Prohibited use” represented as “--
” in the “GC” (General Commercial Zoning District) column and in the “HC” (Highway Commercial Zoning 
District) column with a “Conditional use” represented with a “C” to be placed in both the “GC” (General 
Commercial Zoning District) and “HC” (Highway Commercial Zoning District) columns.   



THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

________________________  
Matthew Ung, Chairman  

________________________  
Jeremy Taylor, Vice-Chairman  

________________________  
Daniel Bittinger II 

Attest:   ________________________  
Mark Nelson 

______________________________  ________________________ 
Patrick Gill, Woodbury County Auditor  Keith Radig 

Adoption Timeline: 
Date of Public Hearing and First Reading____________  
Date of Public Hearing and Second Reading____________ 
Date of Public Hearing and Third Reading____________ 
Date of Adoption_____________ 
Published/Effective Date____________ 



INFORMATION / DISCUSSION: UPDATE ON ZONING COMMISSION MAY 22, 2023 
RECOMMENDATION FOR SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS AMENDMENTS PROPOSAL 
TO WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE.   

As directed by the Woodbury Zoning Commission on Monday, May 22, 2023, the 
Woodbury County Attorney’s office worked with staff to review/revise the language in 
the draft ordinance amendments concerning solar to account for net metering 
opportunities prior to this language being sent to the Board of Supervisors (BoS) for up 
to three (3) public hearings.  The revisions are included in the color “red” below.   

This was brought back to the Zoning Commission at the June 26, 2023 meeting as an 
“Information / Discussion” item to update the Commission and the public about the 
revisions.  The public hearing dates before the Board of Supervisors are yet to be 
determined. 



ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND PORTIONS OF: THE TABLE OF CONTENTS; SECTION 3.03.4 ENTITLED: LAND USE 
SUMMARY TABLE OF ALLOWED USES IN EACH ZONING DISTRICT; PORTIONS OF: SECTION 6.02 
ENTITLED DEFINITIONS; AND THE RENUMBERING OF DEFINITIONS AND PAGE NUMBERS. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY 
COUNTY, IOWA THAT THE BELOW ZONING ORDINANCE LANGUAGE AMENDMENTS BE MADE: 

Amendment #1 –  

On page 39: To add the following line item use language within zoning ordinance Section 3.03.4 Land 
Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses in each Zoning District under the “Utilities” category:

“Solar Energy Systems (Private use)”.  With placement of the letter “A” within the AP (Agricultural 
Preservation), AE (Agricultural Estates), NR (Non-Agricultural Residential Zoning District), SR (Suburban 
Residential), GC (General Commercial), HC (Highway Commercial), LI (Limited Industrial), and GI 
(General Industrial) zoning districts columns on the table related to this line item use. 

On page 92: To add the following definition, “Solar Array” as definition 158 to Article 6. Definitions. 
Section 6.02: Definitions as “158. Solar Array. Equipment used for private or utility scale solar energy 
systems.  Can be mounted on primary or accessory structures, on a racking system affixed to the ground, 
or integrated as a mechanical or structural component of a structure.” 

On page 92: To add the following definition, “Solar Energy Systems, Private” as definition 159 to Article 6. 
Definitions. Section 6.02: Definitions as “159. Solar Energy Systems, Private. An energy system that 
converts solar energy to usable thermal, mechanical, chemical, or electrical energy primarily for 
immediate onsite use that already has an existing principal use on the same parcel.  Solar Energy 
Systems, Private shall be allowed only as a non-utility scale accessory use to a permitted principal use.  
Surplus energy sold back to a utility must comply with all applicable laws including but not limited to 
Section 199, Chapter 15.11(5) of Iowa Administrative Code, and all requirements of the Iowa Utilities 
Board.   Systems can be mounted on primary or accessory structures, on a racking system affixed to the 
ground, or integrated as a mechanical or structural component of a structure.”   

Amendment #2 –  

On page 39: To add the following line item use language within zoning ordinance Section 3.03.4 Land 
Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses in each Zoning District under the “Utilities” category: 

“Solar Energy Systems, Utility Scale”.  With placement of the letter “C” within the AP (Agricultural 
Preservation) and the GI (General Industrial) zoning districts columns on the table related to this line item 
use and with the placement of “--" in the AE (Agricultural Estates), NR (Non-Agricultural Residential 
Zoning District), SR (Suburban Residential), GC (General Commercial), HC (Highway Commercial), and 
LI (Limited Industrial) zoning districts columns on the table related to this line item use. 

On page 92: To add the following definition of “Solar Energy Systems, Utility Scale” as definition 160 to 
Article 6. Definitions. Section 6.02: Definitions as “160. Solar Energy Systems, Utility Scale.  An energy 
system, commonly referred to as a “solar farm”, which converts solar energy to useable thermal, 
mechanical, chemical, or electrical energy primarily for transmission through the electrical grid for offsite 
use or wholesale and/or retail sale.  Systems can be mounted on primary or accessory structures, on a 



racking system affixed to the ground, or integrated as a mechanical or structural component of a 
structure.  Utility scale solar energy systems do not include concentrating solar power (CSP) systems.” 

Amendment #3 –  

Beginning on page 92, to re-designate or re-number the definitions in Article 6. Definitions. Section 6.02: 
Definitions 158 through 188.  The purpose is to add “Solar Array” as definition 158, “Solar Energy 
Systems, Private” as Definition 159, and “Solar Energy Systems, Utility Scale” as Definition 160 thereby 
pushing the existing definitions 158 through 188 ahead three positions with Article 6. Definitions. Section 
6.02 now including definitions 1 through 191.   

Beginning on page 82, to amend Article 6. Definitions by moving the start page from page 82 to page 83. 

On page iii: To repeal and replace “Section 6.01: Construction of Terms …….... 82” with “Section 6.01 
Construction of Terms ….. 83” 

On page iii: To repeal and replace “Section 6.02: Definitions …….... 82” with “Section 6.01: Definitions 
….. 83” 

THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

________________________  
Matthew Ung, Chairman  

________________________  
Jeremy Taylor, Vice-Chairman  

________________________  
Daniel Bittinger II 

Attest:   ________________________  
Mark Nelson 

______________________________  ________________________ 
Patrick Gill, Woodbury County Auditor  Keith Radig 

Adoption Timeline: 
Date of Public Hearing and First Reading____________  
Date of Public Hearing and Second Reading____________ 
Date of Public Hearing and Third Reading____________ 
Date of Adoption_____________ 
Published/Effective Date____________ 


	1) BA Agenda 7-3-23
	2) BA Minutes 06-05-2023
	3) Doll_Variance_Report
	4) BoA_ROP_Effective_6-6-22
	5) Temporary Construction_Ordinance_Amendments
	6) Solar_Zoning_Ordinance_Amendments_6-16-23

